
BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

THANH TAM PHARMACY, INC. 
DBA PACIFIC PHARMACY 

and 

LINDA OANH NGUYEN 
9246 Gardenia Avenue 
Fountain Valley, CA 92708 

Pharmacist License No. RPH 48563 

and 

CAN VINH YOUNG 

Respondents. 

Case No. 4971 

OAH No. 2014100518 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND 
DISCIPLINARY ORDER AS TO 
LINDA OANH NGUYEN ONLY 

DECISION AND ORDER 

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the 

Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter. 

This Decision shall become effective on September 4, 2015. 

It is so ORDERED on August 5, 2015. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

By 
Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D. 
Board President 
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KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 
GREGORY J. SALUTE 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
DESIREE I. KELLOGG 
Deputy Attorney General 
State Bar No. 126461 

600 West Broadway, Suite 1800 
San Diego, CA 92101 
P.O. Box 85266 
San Diego, CA 92186-5266 
Telephone: (619) 645-2996 
Facsimile: (619) 645-2061 

Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

THANH TAM PHARMACY, INC., 
DBA PACIFIC PHARMACY 
9898 Bolsa Avenue 
Westminster, CA 92683 

Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 50504 

LINDA OANH NGUYEN 
9246 Gardenia Avenue 
Fountain Valley, CA 92708 

Pharmacist License No. RPH 48563 

CANVINHVOUNG 
12081 Jennifer Lane 
Garden Grove, CA 92640 

Pharmacist License No. RPH 44286 

Respondents. 

Case No. 4971 

OAHNo. 2014100518 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND 
DISCIPLINARY ORDER AS TO LINDA 
OANH NGUYEN ONLY 

'. 

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

entitled proceedings that the following matters are true: 

I 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT ( 4971) I
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PARTIES 

1. Virginia Herold ("Complainant") is the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy. 

She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this matter by Kamala 

D. Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Desiree I. Kellogg; Deputy Attorney 

General. 

2. Respondent Linda Oanh Nguyen ("Respondent") is represented in this proceeding by 

attorney Adam B. Brown of Brown & Brown, whose address is: 3848 W. Carson Street, Suite 

206, Torrance, California 90503. 

3. On or about March 8, 1996, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License No. 

RPI-I 48563 to Linda Oanh Nguyen (Respondent). The Pharmacist License was in full force and 

effect at all times relevant to the charges brought'in Accusation No. 4971 and will expire on 

August 31, 20 15, unless renewed. 

JURISDICTION 

4. Accusation No. 4971 was filed before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of 

Consumer Affairs, and is currently pending against Respondent. The Accusation and all other 

statutorily required documents were properly served on Respondent on September 3, 2014. 

Respondent timely filed her Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation. 

5. A copy of Accusation No. 4971 is attached as exhibit A and incorporated herein by 

reference. 

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS 

6. Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed witl1 counsel, and understands the 

charges and allegations in Accusation No. 4971. Respondent has also carefully read, fully 

discussed with counsel, and understands the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary 

Order. 

7. Respondent is fully aware of her legal rights in this matter, including the right to a 

hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to confront and cross-examine 

the witnesses against her; the right to present evidence and to testify on her own behalf; the right 

to the issuance of subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of 
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documents; the right to reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other 


rights accorded by the California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws. 


8. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and 

every right set forth above. 


CULPABILITY 


9. Respondent admits the truth of each and every charge and allegation in Accusation 


No. 4971. 


10. Respondent agrees that her Pharmacist License is subject to discipline and she agrees 

to be bound by the Board's probationary terms as set forth in the Disciplinary Order below. 

CONTINGENCY 

11. This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board of Pharmacy. Respondent 

understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Board of Pharmacy may 

communicate directly with the Board regarding tins stipulation and settlement, without notice to 

or participation by Respondent or her counsel. By signing the stipulation, Respondent 

understands and agrees that she may not withdraw her agreement or s~ek to rescind the stipulation 

prior to the time the Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt this stipulation 

as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or 

effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action b~tween the parties, 

and the Board shall not be disqualified from further action by having considered this matter. 

12. The parties understand and agn;e that Portable Document Fonnat (PDF) and facsimile 

copies of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order, including Portable Document Format 

(PDF) and facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals. 

13. This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the parties to be an 

integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement. 

It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions, 

negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary 

Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a 

writing executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties. 
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14. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that 

the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following 

Disciplinary Order: 

DISCIPLINARY ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Pharmacist License No. RPH 48563 issued to Respondent 

Linda Oanh Nguyen (Respondent) is revoked. However, the revocation,is stayed and Respondent 

is placed on probation for five (5) years on the following terms and conditions. 

I. Suspension 

As part of probation, respondent is suspended from the practice of pharmacy for 15 days 

beginning the effective date of this decision. 

During suspension, respondent shall not enter any pharmacy area or any portion of the 

licensed premises of a wholesaler, veterinary food-animal drug retailer or any other distributor of 

drugs which is licensed by the board, or any manufacturer, or where dangerous drugs and devices 

or controlled substances are maintained. Respondent shall not practice pharmacy nor do any act 

involving drug selection, selection of stock, manufacturing, compounding, dispensing or patient 

consultation; nor shall respondent manage, administer, or be a consultant to any licensee of the 

board, or have access to or control the ordering, manufacturing or dispensing of dangerous drugs 

and devices or controlled substances. 

Respondent shall not engage in any activity that requires the professional judgment of a 

pharmacist. Respondent shall not direct or control any aspect of the practice of pharmacy. 

Respondent shall not perform the duties of a pharmacy technician or a designated representative 

for any entity licensed by the board. 

Subject to the above restrictions, respondent may continue to own or hold an interest in any 

licensed premises in which she holds an interest at the time tlus decision becomes effective unless 

otherwise specified in this order. 

Failure to comply with this suspension shall be considered a violation of probation. 

2. Obey All Laws 


Respondent shall obey all state and federal laws and regulations. 
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Respondent shall report any of the following occurrences to the board, in writing, within 

seventy-two (72) hours of such occurrence: 

• 	 an arrest or issuance of a criminal complaint for violation of any provision of the 

Pharmacy Law, state and federal food and drug laws, or state and federal controlled 

substances laws 

• 	 a plea of guilty or nolo contendre in any state or federal criminal proceeding to any 

criminal complaint, information or indictment 

• 	 a conviction of any crime 

• 	 discipline, citation, or other administrative action filed by any state or federal agency 

which involves respondent's pharmacist license or which is related to the practice of 

pharmacy or the manufacturing, obtaining, handling, distributing, billing, or charging 

for any drug, device or controlled substance. 

Failure to timely report such occurrence shall be considered a violation of probation. 

3. Report to the Board 

Respondent shall report to the board quarterly, on a schedule as directed by the board or its 

designee. The report shall be made either in person or in writing, as directed. Among other 

requirements, respondent shall state in each report under penalty of perjury whether there has 

been compliance with all the terms and conditions of probation. Failure to submit timely reports 

in a form as directed shall be considered a violation of probation. Any period(s) of delinquency 

in submission of reports as directed may be added to the total period of probation. Moreover, if 

the final probation report is not made as directed, probation shall be automatically extended until 

such time as the final report is made and accepted by the board. 

4. Interview with the Board 

Upon receipt of reasonable prior notice, respondent shall appear in person for interviews 

with the board or its designee, at such intervals and locations as are determined by the board or its 

designee. Failure to appear for any scheduled interview without prior notification to board staff, 

or failure to appear for two (2) or more scheduled interviews with the board or its designee during 

the period of probation, shall be considered a violation of probation. 
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5. Cooperate with Board Staff 

Respondent shall cooperate with the board's inspection program and with the board's 

monitoring and investigation of respondent's compliance with the terms and conditions of her 

probation. Failure to cooperate shall be considered a violation of probation. 

6. Continuing Education 

Respondent shall provide evidence of efforts to maintain skill and knowledge as a 

pharmacist as directed by the board or its designee. 

7. Notice to Employers 

During the period of probation, respondent shall notify all present and prospective 

employers of the decision in case number 4971 and the terms, conditions and restrictions imposed 

on respondent by the decision, as follows: 

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, and within fifteen (15) days of 

respondent undertaking any new employment, respondent shall cause her direct supervisor, 

pharmacist-in-charge (includingeach new pharmacist-in-charge employed during respondent's 

tenure of employment) and owner to report to the board in writing acknowledging that the listed 

individual(s) has/have read the decision in case number 4971, and terms and conditions imposed 

thereby. It shall be respondent's responsibility to ensure that her employer(s) and/or supervisor(s) 

submit timely acknowledgment(s) to the board. 

If respondent works for or is employed by or through a pharmacy employment service, 

respondent must notify her direct supervisor, pharmacist-in-charge, and owner at every entity 

licensed by the board ofthe terms and conditions of the decision in case number 4971 in advance 

ofthe respondent connnencing work at each licensed entity. A record of this notification must be 

provided to the board upon request. 

Furthermore, within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, and within fifteen 

(15) days of respondent undertaking any new employment by or through a pharmacy employment 

service, respondent shall cause her direct supervisor with the pharmacy employment service to 

report to the board in writing acknowledging that she has read the decision in case number 4971 
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and the terms and conditions imposed thereby. It shall be respondent's responsibility to ensure 

that her employer(s) and/or supervisor(s) submit timely acknowledgment(s) to the board. 

Failure to timely notify present or prospective employer(s) or to cause that/those 

employer(s) to submit timely acknowledgments to the board shall be considered a violation of 

probation. 

"Employment" within the meaning of this provision shall include any full-time, 

part-time, temporary, relief or pharmacy management service as a pharmacist or any 

position for which a pharmacist license is a requirement or criterion for employment, 

whether the respondent is an employee, independent contractor or volunteer. 

8. No Supervision oflnterns, Serving as Pharmacist-in-Charge (PIC), 

Serving as Designated Representative-in-Charge, or Serving as a Consultant 

During the period of probation, respondent shall not supervise any intern pharmacist, be the 

pharmacist-in-charge or designated representative-in-charge of any entity licensed by the board 

nor serve as a consultant unless otherwise specified in this order. Assumption of any such 

unauthorized supervision responsibilities shall be considered a violation of probation. 

9. Reimbursement of Board Costs 

As a condition precedent to successful completion of probation, respondent shall pay to the 

board its costs of investigation and prosecution in the amount of $8,570.16. Respondent shall 

make said payments in a payment plan to be approved by the board. 

There shall be no deviation from this schedule absent prior written approval by the board or 

its designee. Failure to pay costs by the deadline(s) as directed shall be considered a violation of 

probation. 

The filing of bankruptcy by respondent shall not relieve respondent of her responsibility to 

reimburse the board its costs of investigation and prosecution. 

10. Probation Monitoring Costs 

Respondent shall pay any costs associated with probation monitoring as determined by the 

board each and every year of probation. Such costs shall be payable to the board on a schedule as 
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directed by the board or its designee. Failure to pay such costs by the deadline(s) as directed shall 

be considered a violation of probation. 

11. Status of License 

Respondent shall, at all times while on probation, maintain an active, current license with 

the board, including any period during which suspension or probation is tolled. Failure to 

maintain an active, current license shall be considered a violation of probation. 

If respondent's license expires or is cancelled by operation oflaw or otherwise at any time 

during the period of probation, including any extensions thereof due to tolling or otherwise, upon 

renewal or reapplication respondent's license shall be subject to all terms and conditions of this 

probation not previously satisfied. 

12. License Surrender While on Probation/Suspension 

Following the effective date ofthis decision, should respondent cease practice due to 

retirement or health, or be otherwise unable to satisfy the terms and conditions of probation, 

respondent may tender her license to the board for surrender. The board or its designee shall have 

the discretion whether to grant the request for surrender or take any other action it deems 

appropriate and reasonable. Upon formal acceptance of the surrender of the license, respondent 

will no longer be subject to the terms and conditions of probation. This surrender constitutes a 

record of discipline and shall become a part of the respondent's license history with the board. 

Upon acceptance of the surrender, respondent shall relinquish her pocket and wall license to 

the board within ten (1 0) days of notification by the board that the surrender is accepted. 

Respondent may not reapply for any license from the board for three (3) years from the effective 

date ofthe surrender. Respondent shall meet all requirements applicable to the license sought as 

of the date the application for that license is submitted to the board, including any outstanding 

costs. 

13. Notification of a Change in Name, Residence Address, Mailing 

Address or Employment 

Respondent shall notify the board in writing within ten (10) days of any change of 

employment. Said notification shall include the reasons for leaving, the address of the new 
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employer, the name of the supervisor and owner, and the work schedule if known. Respondent 

shall further notify the board in writing within ten (I 0) days of a change in name, residence 

address, mailing address, or phone number. 

Failure to timely notify the board of any change in employer(s), name(s), address(es), or 

phone number(s) shall be considered a violation of probation. 

14. Tolling of Probation 

Except during periods of suspension, respondent shall, at all times while on probation, be 

employed as a pharmacist in California for a minimum of 40 hours per calendar month. Any 

month during which this minimum is not met shall toll the period of probation, i.e., the period of 

probation shall be extended by one month for each month during which this minimum is not met. 

During any such period of tolling of probation, respondent must nonetheless comply with all 

terms and conditions of probation. 

Should respondent, regardless of residency, for any reason (including vacation) cease 

practicing as a pharmacist for a minimum of 40 hours per calendar month in California, 

respondent must notify the board in writing within ten (10) days of the cessation of practice, and 

must further notify the board in writing within ten (10) days of the resumption of practice. Any 

failure to provide such noti±ication(s) shall be considered a violation of probation. 

It is a violation of probation for respondent's probation to remain tolled pursuant to the 

provisions of this condition for a total period, counting consecutive and non-consecutive months, 

exceeding thirty-six (36) months. 

"Cessation of practice" means any calendar month during which respondent is 

not practicing as a pharmacist for at least 40 hours, as defined by Business and 

Professions Code section 4000 et seq . "Resumption of practice" means any calendar 

month during which respondent is practicing as a pharmacist for at least 40 hours as a 

pharmacist as defined by Business and Professions Code section 4000 et seq. 

15. Violation of Probation 

If a respondent has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the board shall 

have continuing jurisdiction over respondent, and probation shall automatically be extended, until 
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all terms and conditions have been satisfied or the board has taken other action as deemed 

appropriate to treat the failure to comply as a violation of probation, to terminate probation, and 

to impose the penalty that was stayed. 

If respondent violates probation in any respect, the board, after giving respondent notice 

and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry out the disciplinary order that 

was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are not required for those provisions stating that a 

violation thereof may lead to automatic termination of the stay and/or revocation of the license. If 

a petition to revoke probation or an accusation is filed against respondent during probation, the 

board shall have continuing jurisdiction and the period of probation shall be automatically 

extended until the petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard and decided. 

16. Completion of Probation 

Upon written notice by the board or its designee indicating successful completion of 

probation, respondent's license will be fully restored. 

17. Restricted Practice 

Respondent's practice of pharmacy shall be restricted to dispensing only dangerous drugs 

and not any controlled substances tmtil she completes twelve (12) hours of remedial education on 

the topic of prescription drug abuse and corresponding responsibility preferably presented by the 

Drug Enforcement Agency. This course shall be preapproved by the board, completed at 

respondent's own expense and at least 50% of the course taken in person. Respondent shall 

submit proof satisfactory to the board of compliance with this term of probation. 

Failure to abide by this restriction or to timely submit proof to the board of compliance 

therewith shall be considered a violation of probation. 

18. Remedial Education 

Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this Decision, Respondent shall submit to the 

Board or its designee, for prior approval, an appropriate program of remedial education related to 

corresponding responsibility, pharmacy law, and pharmacy operations. The program of remedial 

education shall be in addition to the education required under Term 17 of this Stipulated 

Settlement and Disciplinary Order and shall consist of at least six (6) hours per year for each year 
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of the five (5) years of probation, and shall be completed at Respondent's own expense. All 

remedial education shall be in addition to, and shall not be credited toward, continuing education 

(CE) courses used for license renewal purposes. 

Failure to timely submit or complete tbe approved remedial education shall be considered a 

violation of probation. The period of probation will be automatically extended until such 

remedial education is successfully completed and written proof, in a form acceptable to the board, 

is provided to the board or its designee. 

Following the completion of each course, the Board or its designee may require tbe 

Respondent, at his own expense, to take an approved examination to test the Respondent's 

lmowledge of tbe course. If tbe Respondent does not achieve a passing score on the examination, 

tbis failure shall be considered a violation of probation. Any such examination failure shall 

require Respondent to talce another course approved by the Board in the same subject area. 

19. Supervised Practice 

During the period of probation, respondent shall practice only under tbe supervision of a 

licensed pharmacist not on probation with the board. Upon and after the effective date oftbis 

decision, respondent shall not practice pharmacy and her license shall be automatically suspended 

until a supervisor is approved by the board or its designee. The supervision shall be, as required 

by the board or its designee, either: 

Continuous- At least 75% of a work week 

Substantial - At least 50% of a work week 

Partial - At least 25% of a work week 

Daily Review- Supervisor's review of probationer's daily activities within 24 hours 

Within thi1iy (30) days of the effective date of this decision, respondent shall have her 

supervisor submit notification to the board in writing stating tbat the supervisor has read tbe 

decision in case number 4971 and is familial' with tbe required level of supervision as determined 

by the board or its designee. It shall be tbe respondent's responsibility to ensure that her 

employer(s), pharmacist-in-charge and/or supervisor(s) submit timely aclmowledgement(s) to the 

board. Failure to cause the direct supervisor and the pharmacist-in-charge to submit timely 

11 


STIPULATED SETTLEMENT ( 4971) 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

acknowledgements to the board shall be considered a violation of probation. 

If respondent changes employment, it shall be the respondent's responsibility to ensure that 

her employer(s), pharmacist-in-charge and/or supervisor(s) submit timely acknowledgement(s) to 

the board. Respondent shall have her new supervisor, within fifteen (15) days after employment 

commences, submit notification to the board in writing stating the direct supervisor and 

pharmacist-in-charge have read the decision in case number 4971 and is familiar with the level of 

supervision as determined by the board. Respondent shall not practice pharmacy and her license 

shall be automatically suspended until the board or its designee approves a new supervisor. 

Failure to cause the direct supervisor and the pharmacist-in-charge to submit timely 

acknowledgements to the board shall be considered a violation of probation. 

Within ten (1 0) days of leaving employment, respondent shall notify the board in writing. 

During suspension, respondent shall not enter any pharmacy area or any portion of the 

licensed premises of a wholesaler, veterinary food-animal drug retailer or any other distributor of 

drugs which is licensed by the board, or any manufacturer, or where dangerous drugs and devices 

or controlled substances are maintained. Respondent shall not practice pharmacy nor do any act 

involving drug selection, selection of stock, manufacturing, compounding, dispensing or patient 

consultation; nor shall respondent manage, administer, or be a consultant to any licensee of the 

board, or have access to or control the ordering, manufacturing or dispensing of dangerous drugs 

and controlled substances ..Respondent shall not resume practice until notified by the board. 

During suspension, respondent shall not engage in any activity that requires the 

professional judgment of a pharmacist. Respondent shall not direct or control any aspect of the 

practice of pharmacy. Respondent shall not perform the duties of a pharmacy technician or a 

designated representative for any entity licensed by the board. 

Subject to the above restrictions, respondent may continue to own or hold an interest in any 

licensed premises in which she holds an interest at the time this decision becomes effective unless 

otherwise specified in this order. 

Failure to comply with this suspension shall be considered a violation of probation. 
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20. No Ownership of Licensed Premises 

Respondent shall not own, have any legal or beneficial interest in, or serve as a manager, 

administrator, member, officer, director, trustee, associate, or partner of any business, firm, 

partnership, or corporation currently or hereinafter licensed by the board. Respondent shall sell 

or transfer any legal or beneficial interest in any entity licensed by the board within ninety (90) 

days following the effective date ofthis decision and shall immediately thereafter provide written 

proof thereof to the board. Failure to timely divest any legal or beneficial interest(s) or provide 

documentation thereof shall be considered a violation of probation. 

21. Tolling of Suspension 

During the period of suspension, respondent shall not leave California for any period 

exceeding ten (10) days, regardless of purpose (including vacation). Any such absence in excess 

of the (10) days during suspension shall be considered a violation of probation. Moreover, any 

absence from California during the period of suspension exceeding ten (I 0) days shall toll the 

suspension, i.e., the suspension shall be extended by one day for each day over ten (10) days 

respondent is absent from California. During any such period of tolling of suspension, 

respondent must nonetheless comply with all terms and conditions of probation. 

Respondent must notify the board in writing within ten (I 0) days qf departure, and must 

further notify the board in writing within ten (I 0) days of return. The failure to provide such 

notification(s) shall constitute a violation of probation. Upon such departure and return, 

respondent shall not resume the practice of pharmacy until notified by the board that the period of 

suspension has been satisfactorily completed. 

22. Ethics Course 

Within sixty (60) calendar days of the effective date of this decision, respondent shall enroll 

in a course in ethics, at respondent's expense, approved in advance by the board or its designee. 

Failure to initiate the course during the first year of probation, and complete it within the second 

year of probation, is a violation of probation. 

Respondent shall submit a certificate of completion to the board or its designee within five 

days after completing the course. 
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23. Enroll in PDMP 

Within thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of this Decision, Respondent shall 

register in the California Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PDMP). 

ACCEPTANCE 

I have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully 

discussed it with my attorney, Adam B. Brown. runderstand the stipulation and the effect it will 

have on my Pharmacist License. I enter Into this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order 

voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the Decision and Order of the 

Board of Pharmacy. 

DATED: 	 tJ{;-__zf-:2.-0f.!) ~-~~
LINDA OANHGUYEN 


 

Respondent 


I . .haye read aad-i!ully discussed with Itespondent Lluda Oailh l~guyen !he tetms and 

conditions ancl-Ert:ltOL matters contamed m the above Stipulatlld Sllttlernent and i).iscipf -, "·"· 

I ·awrtYo e its fumr mid contenr 

0~~~~·=----------T,~~~-----=========~rAaam ts. tsrown 
Attorney for Respondeur 
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ENDORSEMENT 

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully 

submitted for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy. 

DATED: ~G2-.--=z.:....:q__---L/~'5:.__./__ Respectfully submitted, 

KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 
GREOORY J. SALUTE 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

J2v- f-.---
~E&J.:-I«ELtoacr \2ow tS Sf; ""o<-<
Deputy Attorney General 
Attorneys.for Complainant 

tJ 0 ·- Z9- SlD/..5 


~~~ SD20 13706!68/81 0875l4.doc 

15 

STIPULA'rED SI!1'TLEMENT (4971) 



Exhibit A r 
I 

Accusation No. 4971 


r 



5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

2 


3 


4 


G 

7 


8 


9 


1 1 


12 


13 


14 


16 


17 


18 


19 


21 


22 


2 
~,

-' 
24 


26 


27 


K11MAI~A D. HAI(Rlo 
Anorney Gcnernl ol' Cttlifornia 
LJr-.:DA K. ScHNEIDER 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

DESIREE], KELlOGG 

Deputy Atlorney Cienera1 

State Bar No. 126461 


110 West "A" Street, Suite 110(J 

San Diego, CA 92101 

P. 0. Box 85266 

Sun Diego, CA 92186-5266 

Tdcphone: (619) 645-2996 

Facsimile: (619) 645-2.061 


Atlorneysfor Complainanl 

BEFORE THE 

BOAIW OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE 0 F CALIFORNIA 


t 

ln the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

THANH TAM PHARMACY, INC., 
DBA PACIFIC PHARMACY 
98.98 Bolsa Avenue 
Westminster, CA 92683 


Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 50504 


LINDA OANH NGUYEN 

9246 Gardenia Avenue 

Fountain Valley, CA 92708 


Pharmacist Lkcnse No. RPH 92708 


CAN VINH YOUNG 

12081 Jennifer Lane 

Garden Grove, CA 92640 


Pharmacist License No. Rl'H 44286 


Respondents 

Case No. 4971 
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Complainant alleges: 


PARTIES 


I. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity 

as the Executive Of/iccr of the Board oJ' Pharmacy, Department oJ' Consumer Affairs. 

2. On or about October 21, 2009, the Board issued Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 

48979 to Thanh Tam Pharmacy, lnc., dba Pacific Phmmucy with Kimdzung Nguyen designated as 

the Pharmacist-in-Charge. On or about Janum-y· 24, 2011, there was a change in ownership of thai 

pharmacy which resulted in the Board issumg Pharmacy Permit Number PJ-IY 50504 lo Thanh 

Tam Pharmacy, lnc., db« Padiic Pharmacy (Respondent Pacific Pharmacy). The Pharmacy 

Permit was in full force and effect at all Limes relevant to the chmges brought herein and will 

expire on January I, 2015, unless renewed. 

3. On or about March 8, 1996, the Board ofPhannacy issued Pharmacist License 

Nnmber RPH 48563 to Linda Oanh Nb'l.Jyen (Respondent Linda Nguyen). The Pharmacist 

License was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will 

expire on August 31, 2015, unless renewed. 

4. On or abottt June 21, 1 99\, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License 

Number RPJ-J 44286 to Can Vinh Voung (Respondent Can Vuong). The Pharmacist License was 

in full force and e!Iect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on June 

30,2015, unless renewed. 

JURISDICTION 

5. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of 

Consumer AJ:fairs, under the authority of the followin[; laws. All section references are to the 

Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated. 

6. Section 4011 of the Code provides that the Board'shall administer and enforce both 

tbe Pharmacy Law [Bus. & Prof Code,§ 4000 et seq.] and the Uniform Controlled Substances 

Act IHealth & Surety Code .. {i 1 I 000 et seq]. 

7. Section 4300(a) of the Code provides that every license issued by the Board may be 

suspended or revoked. 
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8. Section 't300.1 of' the Code states: 

The expiwlion, cancellation, f(JrJ'eiture, or suspension of a board-issued liGense 
by operation or law or by order or decision oftbc board or" court or law, the 
placement of a licene<e on u retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license b1• a 
licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction tO C01111TlCl'lCC or proceed with any 
investigation ol', or action or disciplinary proceeding against, the licensee or to render 
tl decision suspending or revoking the license. 

· STATUTOHY AND RIGGULATORY I'ROVJSJONS 

9. Section 430 I of the Code states in pertinent part: 

The board shall take action against any holder or a license who is guilty of' 

unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by haucl or 

misrepresentation or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is 

not limited to, any ol'the !allowing: 


(j) The violation or any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the 

United States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs .... 


(o) Violating or attempting lo violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or 
abetting the violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter 
or ofthe applicable federal and state. laws and regulations governing pharmacy, 
incltJding regulations established by the board or any other state or federal regulatory 
agency. 

(q) Engaging in any conduct that subverts or attempts to subvert an 
investigation of the board. · 

10. Secl.ion 4113(c) oflhe Code states: 

The phannacist-in-charge shall be responsible for a pharmacy's compliance 
with all slate and fe.clen.tllaws and regulations pertaining to the practice of' pharmacy. 

11. Section 4l15(n) o[ the Code states: 

Every pharmacy shall establish a quality assurance program that shall, at a 
minimum, document medication errors al1ribulable, in whole or part, to the pharmacy 
or its personnel. 'T'be purpose of the quality assurance program shall be to assess 
errors that occur in the pharmacy in dispensing or furnishing pre~cription medications 
so that the phan11acy may take appropriate action to prevent a reoccurrence. 

I 
!

I 

I 1

12. Section 4306.5 olthe Code stales, in pertinent part: 

Unproiessional eon duct [or a phannacist may include any of the following: 

3 

Accusouon 



2 

4 

5 

7 

8 

9 

I 10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2.0 

2.1 

2.2. 

23 

24 

25 

26 

'27 

Acts or omissions that involve~ in 'YVhule or .ill part, the inappropriate exerc:ise of 
his or her education, training, or experience as a pharmacist, whether or nul the act 
or omission arises in the comse of the: practice of phanmtC)' or· the ownership, 
management. administration, or opcnrt.ion of' lt pharrnacy or other cntrrv licensed by 
~cboa~. , · · 

Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part, the Jltilurc to consult 
appropriak patient, prescription. and other records pcrlaining to the performance of 
any pharmac.y func:tion. 

13. Heallh and Saiet)' Code section 11153(a) states: 

A prescnption for a eontrullcd substance shall only be isstted for a legitimate 

medical purpoc;e by an individual practitioner acting in the usual course of his or her 

prolessional practice. The responsibility for the proper prescribing and dispensing of 

controlled c;ubstanccs is upon the prescribing practit'ioner, but a corresponding 

responsibility rests with the pharmacist who fills the prescription. Except as 

authorized by this division, the following are not legal prescriptions: ( 1) an order 

purporting t.o be a prescription which is issued not in the usual course of 

pro.Jessional treatment or in legitimate and authorized research; or (2) an order for an 

addict or habitual 1rser of controlled substances, which is issued not in the course of 

professional treatment or as part of an authorized narcotic treatment program, for the 

purpose of providing the user with controlled substances, sufftcient to keep him or 

her comfmiable by maintaining customary use. 


14. Health and Safety Code section 11165(cl) states, in pertinent part: 

To assist law enforcement and regulatory llgencies in their eff01is to control the 
diversion and resultant abuse of Schedule II, Schedule lll, and Schedule TV controlled 
substances, and for statistical analysis, education, and research, the Deparimcnt of 
Justice shalL contingent upon the availability of adequate fw1ds from the Contingent 
Fund ofthc Medical Board of California, the Pharmacy Board Contingent Fund, the 
State Dentistry Fund, the Board of Registered Nursing Fund, and the Osteopathic 
Medical Board of California Contingent Fund, maintain the Controlled Substance 
Utilization Review and Evaluation System (CURES) for the electronic monitoring of, 
and Internet access to information regarding, the prescribing and dispensing of 
Schedule II, Schedule liJ and Schedule JV controlled substances by all practitioners 
authorized t.o prescribe or dispense these controlled substances. 

For each prescription ror a Schedule II, Schedule Ill, or Schedule TV controlled 
substance. as deftned in the controlled substances schedule in "federal l<rw and 
regulatior;s, speciftcally Sections 130H.l2, 1308.13, and 1308.14, respectively, of 
Title 21 or the Code of Federal Regulations, the dispensing pharmacy or clinic shall ! 

I

I 

provide the following information to \be Dcpal1.ment of Justice on <t weekly basis and 
in a tcJJ'ma\ specified by tht Department or Justicc: 
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J 5. Section 1715(a) of title IG, California Code of Regulations state~: 

11re pharmacist-in-charge of each pharmacy as defined under section 4029 or 
section 40:n of the Business and Professions Code shall complete a self-assessment 
of the pharmacy's compliance with federal and stale pharmacy law. T'hc assessment 
shall be performed before .July I of every odd-numbered year. The IJI'imary purpose 
of the self-assessment is to promote compliance llu'OlJgh seJr~examination and 
education. 

16. Section 1761 of Litle 16, California Code of Regulations states: 

(a) No pharmacist shall compound or dispense any prescription which contains 
any significant error, omission) lnegularltyl uncertainty, ambiguity or alteration. 
Upon receipt of any such preset'iption, the phat'rnaeist shall contact the prescriber to 
obtain the information needed to validate the prescription. 

(b) Even after conferring with the presct"iber, a pharmacist shall not compound 

or dispense a controlled substance prescription where the pha1macist knows or has 

objective reason to know that said prescription was not issued for a legi\imate 

medical purpose. 


17. Section 1707.3 of title 16, California Code of Regulations states: 

Prior to consultation as set forth in section 1707.2, a pharmacist shall review a 
patient's drug therapy and medication record before es.ch prescription drug is 
delivered. The review shall include screening for severe potential dnrg therapy 
problems. 

18. Section 1304.04 of title 21, Code of Federal Regulations states in pertinent part: 

(f) Each registered manufacturer, distributor, importer, exporter, narcotic 
treatment program and compmmder for narcotic treatment program shall maintain 
inventories and records of controlled substances as follows: 

Inventories ancl records of controlled substances listed in Schedules Ill, IV and 
V shall be maintained either separately from all other records of the registrant or in 
such form that lhe information required is readily retrievable from the ordinary 
business records of the registrant. 

19. Section lJ(Jll. ·1 I (a) of title 21, Code of l'edcral Rcgulatiorrs slates: 

General requirements. Each inventory shall contain a cmnplete and accurate 
record of all controlled substances on band on the dale the inventory is taken, and 
shall be maintained in written, typewritten, or printed form al tl1e registered location. 
An inventory taken by use of an oral recording device must be promptly transcribed. 
Controlled substances shall be deemed to be "on hltnd" if they are in the possession of 
or under the control of the registrant ineluding substances returned by a customer, 
ordered by a customer bnt nol yet invoiced, stored in a \Varchouse on behalf of the 
registrant, ancJ substances in the possession of employees or the registrant and 
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tntcndcd for distribution as complimentary samples. A separutc inventory shall be 
made for each registered location and euch independent activity regi~:terecl, except as 
provided in paragraph (e)(4) of this section. ln the event controlled substance is in the 
possession or under the control a !'the registrant are stored at a location of which 
he/she is not registered, the substances shall be included in the inventory or the 
registered location to which they arc subjcc·t to control or to which the person 
possessing the substance is responsible. The inventory may be taken either as of 
opening of business or as of' the close of business on the inventory elate and it shall be 
indicated on the inventOI')'· 

COST RECOVERY 

20. Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in periinent part, that the Board may request the 

administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of 

the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs oftl're investigation and 

enforcement of the case. 

DRUG 

21, Phenergan with Codeine is the brand name !<.1r promethazine with codeine, a Schedule 

V controlled substance pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 111 058(c)(l) and is a 

dangerous drug pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 4022. 

FACTlJAL ALLEGATIONS 

22. From March 26,2011 through May 26,2012, Respondent Linda Nguyen was the 

Pharmacist-in-Charge (PIC) of Respondent Pacific Pharmacy. From July 1, 2012 and at all times 

thereafter, Respondent Can Vuong was the PlC of Respondent Pacific Pharmacy. 

23. In 2011, Respondents Pacific Pharmacy and Linda Nguyen co-mingled records and 

inventories f(>r Schedule Ill, Sched\!lc IV and Schedule \1 controlled substances witl1 the records· 

for other dangerous drugs. 

24. ln 2013, Respondents Pacific Pharmacy and Can Vuong d.id not fully cDmplete fl sell~ 

assessment detailing Respondent Pacific Pharmacy's compliance with federal m1cl state pharmacy 

law, Respondent Pacific Pharmacy and Can Vuong also did not have B quality assurance program 

which documented and assessed medication crTors to determine the cause and to make an 

appropriate response. Respondent Can Vuong admitted to the Board inspector that they had 

failed to implement this program. 

6 I

I 


·---·---------
/>..ccusaliun 



2 

3 

Ll 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

'27 

28 

25. From zen I through 2013, Respondems did not provide any information for each 

prescription dispensed for a Schedule ll. Schedule II1 or Schedule IV controlled substance to the 

Department of .Justice on a weekly basis l'or inclusion in the Controlled Substance Utiliz.ation 

Kcvicw and !:'valuation System ('·CURES"). 

26. On or about September 19, 2012, Respondents Paciilc Pharmacy and Can Vuong did 

not accurately document their biennial inventory oftbe pharmacy':; controlled subs\Hnces in that 

they did not indicate if the inventory was taken at the opening or close of business on the 

inventmy elate, 

27. ln 2013, Respondents Pacific Pharmacy and Can Vuong did not provide requested 

records to the Board on multiple occasions, including patient profiles and physician profiles or 

only provided incomplete records. 

28. Respondents canied only the generic promethazine with codeine which tastes better 

than other brands, and ordered promethazine with codeine from multiple wholesalers. The 

volume of promethazine with codeine dispensed by Respondents was much higher than the 

volume dispensed from neighboring pharmacies. 

29. From March 26, 2011 to June 6, 2011, Respondents Pacific Pham1acy and Linda 

Nguyen dispensecl 308 prescriptions for approximately 308 pints (145,684mls) of promethazine 

\¥ith codeine after the receipt of prescriptions issued by Dr. T.R., who subsequently sunendered 

his DEA registration on .l uly 8, 2011 for cause. 

30. Patients 'Nith prescriptions ordered by Dr. T.R., paid lor the above-referenced 

prescriptions in cash, without seeking reimbursement from their insmance carriers. Most of the 

prescriptions had the patient's names handwritten on the back of the prescriptions, The majority 

of these prescriptions were writlcn JC1r the same large qmmtity (one pint) with the same directions 

lilr use (one teaspoon, four times a day) and the same estimated days' supply (twenty Jour). The 

patients' residences were located far away fmm Dr. T.R. 's office and an average of twenty six 

miles from Responclcntl'acilic Pharmacy. Patients received prescriptions hom Dr. T.R. for lhe 

same duplicative drug therapy. promethazine with codeine, during successive rnontl1s. 
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Respondents Pacific Pharmacy and Linda Nguyen diclnot contact Dr. T.lZ. or review CURES 

prior lO filling the prescriptions. 

3 I. From .I anuary 24, 20 I 2 through May I 3, 20 I 3, Respondents Pacific Pharmacy and 

Can Vuong or Linda Nguyen dispensed 299 prescriptions of approximately 141,328mls of 

promctlurzine with codeine after the receipt ofprescriptions issued by Dr, H .S. or his physician 

assistant, H.T.M. Some ofthe1;e patients were former ratients of Dr. T.R Patients received 

prescriptions for duplicative drug therapies consisting of promethazine with codeine and 

antibiotics durin[!. successive months. 

32. Patients paid lor the above-referenced prescriptions in cash ordered by Dr. H.S. or his 

physician assistant, H. T.M. 1without seeking reimbursement from their insurance carriers. The 

patients' residences were located far away f]·om Dr. H.S. or his physician assistont, I-l.T.M.'s 

oftice and an average of twenty eight miles away from Respondent Pacific Pharmacy. 

Respondents Pacific Phmmacy and Can Vuong did not contact Dr. H.S. or his physician assistant, 

H.T.M. or review CURES prior to filling the prescriptions. 

FIRST CAllSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Failure to Report Dispensing of Controlled Prescriptions to CURES against Respondents) 

33. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under Cocle section 430\U), lor 

violating Health and Safety Code section 11165(d), in that they failed to provide any inlorrnation 

for each prescription dispensed of a Schedule 11, Schedule Ill or Schedule IV controlled substance 

to the Department of Justice on a weekly basis for inclusion in CURES, as set forth in paragraphs 

22 through 32 above, which arc incorpomted herein by reference. 

SF,COND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Failure to Properly Conduct Biennial Inventory of Controlled Substances against 


Respondent l'acific Pharmacy and Can Vuong) 


34. Respondents Paciuc Pharmacy and Can Vuong ure subject to disciplinary action 

under Code section 430l(o), for violating title 21, Code of Federal Regulations, section 

1304.11 (a), in that they ir1iled to indicate whether the biennial inventory of controlled substances 
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conduCled on September I 9, 2012, had been done at either l:hc opening or closing of business, as 

set forth in paragraphs 22 through 32 above, which are incorporated herein by reference, 

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Failure to Complete a Self-Assessment of Compliance wHh Federal unci State Pharmacy 

Lnw against Respondents Pacific Pharmacy and Can Vuong) 

35, Respondents Pacific Pharmacy and Can Vuong arc subject to disciplinary action 

under Code section 430l(o), for violating title 16, California Code of Regu.lations, section 

1715(a) in that they failed to have or I~Llly complete a self-assessment of Respondent Pacific 

Pharmacy's compliance with federal and state pharmacy laws, as set tlJrth in paragraphs 22 

through 32 above, which are incorporated herein by reference, 

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Failure to Institute a Qunllty Assurance Program against Respondents Pacific Pharmacy 

and Can Vuong) 

36,, Respondents Pacific Pharmacy and Can Vuong are subject to disciplinary action 

under Code section 4301(o), for violating Business and Professions Code section 4!25(a), in that 

they failed to institute a quality assurance program designed to assess medication errors, as set 

forth in paragraphs 22 through 32 above, which are incorporated herein by reference, 

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Failure to Maintain Segregated Records of Controlled Substances against Respondents 

Pacific Pharmacy and Linda Nguyen) 

37. Respondents Pacific Phmmacy ancl Linda Nguyen are subject to disciplinary action 

under Code section 430l(o), for violating title 21, Code of Federal Regulations, section 1304A(f), 

in that they co-mingled the inventories and records Jbr Schedule IlL Schedule JV and Schedule V 

controlled substances with lhe records for other dangerous ch·ugs, as sel forth in paragraphs 22 

through 32 above, which are incorporated herein by reference. 

i 

f 

i 
I 

C) 

Accusation 

I 




5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

2 

3 

<I 

6 

7 

g 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

. 18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

SIXTH CAliSE F'OH DISC!PLJNE 

(Subverting Investigation of Board against Respondent .Pneific PharnuH'Y and Can Vuong) 

38. Respondents Pacific Phmmae)' and Can Vuong arc subject to disciplinary action 

under Code section 4301 (q), for unprofessional concluc\ in thai they subvertecl an investigation of 

the Board by failing to produce requested records in a timely manner, produced incomplete 

records or die! no\ rroduce the requested records at all, as sci f(Jrih in paragraphs 22 through 32 

above, which are incorporated herein by reference. 

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Failing to Comply with Corresponding Responsibility 


for Legitimate Controlled Substance Prescriptions against Respondents)

I 

39. Respondents are subject to diseiplimu-y action under Code section 4301(j), for 

violating Health and Safety Code section 11153(a), in that they failed to comply with their 

corresponding responsibility to ensure that controlled substances were dispensed for a legitimate 

medical purpose when Respondents f-urnished prescriptions for controlled substances even though 

"red f1ags" were present, as set forth in paragraphs 2'1 through 32 above, which are incorporated 

herein by rekrence. 

EIGHTH CAlJSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Dispensing Controlled Substance Prescriptions with Significant Errors, Omissions, 


lrrcguladties, Uncertainties, Ambiguities or Alterations against Respondents) 


40. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under Cocle section 430l(o), for 

violating title 16, California Code ofRegulalions, sections 176l(a) and (b) in that they dispensed 

prescriptions for a controlled substance, promethazine with codeine, which contained significant 

eJTors, omissions, irregularitie~;, uncertaintie~, mnbiguities or alLelatiLHl.S) as set forth in paragraphs, 

22 thmugh 32 above, wllich are incorporated herein by reference. 
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NJ!'\TH CALISE FOH DISCIPLINE 


(Failure to Review Patients' Medication Record Before Prescription Druos Delivered 

' ~ 

again~t Respondents) 

41. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under Code section 430l(o). f(H' 

violating title 16, California Code of'RcgulatiotlS, o;cction 1707.3, in that they dispensed , 

prescriptions for drugs, wititOLtt review of patients' medication records before each prescription 

dru~ was delivered. Such a review would have revealed numerous "reel flags" as set forth in 
._, '-' ' 

paragraphs 22 through 32 ttbove, which me incorporated herein hy reference 

TENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Failure to Exerci.le 01: Implement Best Professionai.Judgment or Corresponding 


Responsibility when Dispensing Controlled Substances 


against Respondents Linda Nguyen and Can Vuong) 


42. Respondents Linda Nguyen and Can Vuong are subject to disciplinary action under 

Code section 4301 (o), for violating Busi11ess and Professions Code section 4306.5(a) and (b), in 

that they failed to c;.:ercise or implement his or her best professional judgment or corresponding 

responsibility when dispensing comro\ied substances, as set forth in paragraphs 22 through 32 

above, which are incoq)orated herein by reference. 

ELEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(llnprofessional Conduct against Respondents Linda Nguyen and Can Vuong) 


43. Respondents are subject to disciplinary actiOn under Code section 4301 for 

unprofessional conduct in that they engaged in the activities described in paragraphs 22 through 

32 above, which arc incorporntcd herein by reference. 

PMYru 

WHEREFORE. Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged, 

and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy isSlle a clccisicm: 

I. Revokmg or suspending Phunnacy Permit Number PHY 50504, issued to Thanh Tum 

Pharn1acy) Inc. dho PaciCic Pharmacy: i 

I 
I 

I 


11 

http:Exerci.le


5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

2 


3 


4 


G 


7 


8 


9 


1 1 


12 


13 


14 


](i 


17 


1 8 


19 


21 


22 


23 


26 


27 


28 


2 Revoking or suspending Phannaeist License Number Rf'H 4·8563, issued 10 Lrncla 

Oanh Nguyen; 

3. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 4A286, issued to Can Vinh 

Vuong; 

Ordering Thanh Tam Pharrnacy, lnc., Linda Oanh Nguyen and Can Vinb Voung to 

pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs of the investigation and enJorcerncnt of this case, 

pLrrsLwnt to Business and Proressions Code section 125.3; 

5. Taking such other and fUJ1her action as deemed necessary and proper. 

DATED: 

.ROLD 

Executive rcer 
Board of Pharmacy 
D~partment of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 
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